
 71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                 (DECEMBER 10) (Week 50 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark E. Nelson         Keith W. Radig        Jeremy J. Taylor        Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held December 10, 
2024, at 4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of 
taking official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come 
before the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board.  
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

                          
4:00 p.m.     Closed Session General Relief Appeal Hearing for J.H. {Iowa Code Section 21.5 (1) (a)} 
                     First Floor Boardroom 
 
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 7 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the December 3, 2024 meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  County Auditor – Patrick Gill 

                         Approval of Liquor License Application for Lofted View Events, Bronson 

 

                    5.  County Treasurer – Tina Bertrand 

                          Approve property tax refund request for parcel #894710454040 in the amount of $296.50 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

 

                    6.  Board Administration – Karen James 

                         a.  Approval of resolution thanking and commending Faye Hill for her years of service with   

                              Woodbury County 

                         b.  Approval of resolution thanking and commending Mark Nahra for his years of service with   

                              Woodbury County 

                         c.  Approval of resolution to appoint Jean Logan as Representative of the Northwest Iowa 

                              Regional Housing Authority 

                         d.  Approval to appoint Treyla Lee to the Judicial Magistrate Nomination Commission 

                         e.  Approval of lifting tax suspensions for petitioners who failed to re-certify their income or 

                              income does not qualify for continued tax suspension 

 

                    7.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                         a.  Approval of Memorandum of Personnel Transactions 

                         b.  Approval of retiree request to remain on the Wellmark PPO & county dental family plans 

                         c.  Approval of retiree request to remain on county dental plan 

                         d.  Approval of the casualty policy with Princeton Excess and Surplus Lines Insurance Company 

                         e.  Approval to create a Human Resources’ part-time secretary position 

  

 End Consent Agenda 

 

                   8.  Veenstra & Kimm Inc. – Patrick Mouw 

                        Public hearing and approval of engineer’s report for creation of Salix Drainage                   Action 

                        District 

 

                   9.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

                        a.  Approval to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission’s                                   Action 

                             recommendation from their 11/25/24 meeting to approve the final plat 

                             of Oakridge Addition, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury County, Iowa 

                        b.  Approval to accept and approve the final plat of Oakridge Addition, a minor                   Action 

                             subdivision, to Woodbury County, Iowa with the condition that an access 

                             easement be executed as presented 

                        c.  Approval to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission’s                                   Action 

                             recommendation from their 11/25/24 meeting to approve the final plat of 

                             JW Collins Homestead, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury County, Iowa 

                        d.  Approval to accept and approve the final plat of JW Collins Homestead,                        Action 

                             a minor subdivision, to Woodbury County, Iowa                                

   

                 10.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                   Information    

               

                 11.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                           Information 

 

                 12.  Board Concerns                                                                                                            Information     

 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                               
WED., DEC 11      7:30 a.m.    SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordon Drive    

                              8:05 a.m.    Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                            12:00 p.m.    District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                    

THU., DEC 12       4:00 p.m.    Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 

                             5:30 p.m.    SIMPCO Board of Directors & Holiday Gathering, Sioux City Country Club  

WED., DEC 18    12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

THU., DEC 19       4:30 p.m.    Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

FRI., DEC 20      12:00 p.m.     Siouxland Human Investment Partnership Board Meeting, 2540 Glenn Ave. 

FRI., JAN 3          9:00 a.m.      Hungry Canyons Alliance - TBD  
 
MON., JAN 6       6:00 p.m.      Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom    
 
WED., JAN 8       6:30 p.m.      911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill           \ 
 
                             8:05 a.m.      Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           12:00 p.m.      District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St. 

                             6:30 p.m.      911 Service Board Meeting, Public Safety Center, Climbing Hill                         

THU., JAN 9      12:00 p.m.      SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive. 

                            4:00 p.m.      Conservation Board Meeting, Dorothy Pecaut Nature Center, Stone Park 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                    

  
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



DECEMBER 3, 2024, FORTY-NINETH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, December 3, 2024, at 3:45 p.m.  Board members present were Ung, Radig, 
Nelson, Taylor, and Bittinger II. Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, 
Human Resources Director, and Michelle Skaff, Deputy Auditor/Clerk to the Board.  
 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to go into closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i).  Carried 4-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Nelson to go out of closed session per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i).  Carried 4-0 on roll-call vote. 
 
Radig joined the meeting at 4:30pm. 
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the agenda for December 3, 2024. Carried 4-1, Taylor opposed.  Copy 

filed. 
 
 Taylor expressed concerns regarding the omission of an agenda request regarding LEC expenses and revenue. 
 

Doyle Turner, Moville, expressed concerns regarding the transparency of LEC Authority information and the 28E 
agreement that established the Law Enforcement Authority. 
 
Motion by Ung second by Bittinger to approve the following items by consent: 

 
2. To approve minutes of the November 26, 2024, meeting.  Copy filed. 
 
3. To approve the claims totaling $164,835.95.  Copy filed. 
 
4. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign a Resolution setting the public hearing and sale dare for parcel 

#894704127021, 5201 Hamilton Blvd. 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 
RESOLUTION #13,808 

NOTICE OF PROPERTY SALE 
 

WHEREAS Woodbury County, Iowa was the owner under a tax deed of a certain parcel of real estate described as: 
 
Lot Sixty (60) Buckwalter Manor Second Addition to Sioux City, Woodbury County, Iowa 
(5201 Hamilton Blvd.) 
 
NOW THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa as follows: 
 
1.   That a public hearing on the aforesaid proposal shall be held on 
       The 17th Day of December, 2024 at 4:35 o’clock p.m. in the basement of the    
       Woodbury County Courthouse.  

 
2.   That said Board proposes to sell the said parcel of real estate at a 
      public auction to be held on the 17th Day of December, 2024, immediately 
      following the closing of the public hearing. 

 
3.   That said Board proposes to sell the said real estate to the highest 

bidder at or above a total minimum bid of $234.00 plus recording fees.  
 

4.  That this resolution, preceded by the caption "Notice of Property Sale" 
     and except for this subparagraph 4 be published as notice of the 



December 3, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                               Page 2 
 

 

 

 

     aforesaid proposal, hearing and sale.  
 
Dated this 3rd Day of December, 2024. 

 WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 Copy filed. 
  
5a. To approve the separation of Kelsey Hinrickson, Clerk II, County Treasurer Dept., effective 11-22-2024.  

Resignation.; the separation of Faye Hill, Clerk II, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 12-31-2024.  Retired.; and the 
separation of Isaac Martindale, District Foreman, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 01-10-2025.  Resignation.  Copy 
filed. 

 
5b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Clerk II, 

Secondary Roads Dept. AFSCME Courthouse: $19.24/hour.  Copy filed. 
 
5c. To approve the request of Faye Hill to remain on the County Dental Insurance with spouse.  Copy filed. 
 
5d. To approve the renew of 2025 Wellmark self-funded renewal rates.  Copy filed. 
 
5e.  To approve the overlap of staff in Secondary Roads.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0. 
 
6.             Reports on committee meetings were heard. 

 
7.             There were no citizen concerns. 
 
8. Board Concerns were heard. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until December 10, 2024. 
 
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 
 
 
 













WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Faye Hill 
 

FOR HER service TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Faye Hill has capably served Woodbury County as an 

employee of the Secondary Roads Department for 27 years from September 
29, 1997 to December 31, 2024. 
 

WHEREAS, the service given by Faye Hill as a Woodbury County 

employee, has been characterized by her dedication to the best interests of the 
citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 

undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Faye Hill for her 
years of service to Woodbury County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing 

below that the future hold only the best for this very deserving person, Faye Hill 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 10th day of December 2024. 

 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

________________________                            _________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman               Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
 
________________________                            _________________________ 
Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member    Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
 
                                          ________________________ 
                                               Mark E. Nelson, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 

RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 

A RESOLUTION THANKING AND COMMENDING 

 

Mark Nahra 
 

FOR HER service TO WOODBURY COUNTY 

 
WHEREAS, Mark Nahra has capably served Woodbury County as an 

employee of the Secondary Roads Department for 15 years from January 1, 
2009 to February 14, 2025. 
 

WHEREAS, the service given by Mark Nahra as a Woodbury County 

employee, has been characterized by his dedication to the best interests of the 
citizens of Woodbury County; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA that the 

undersigned members of this Board thanks and commends Mark Nahra for his 
years of service to Woodbury County; and  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that it is the wish of all those signing 

below that the future hold only the best for this very deserving person, Mark 
Nahra. 
 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 10th day of December 2024. 

 
 
 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

________________________                            _________________________ 
Matthew A. Ung, Chairman               Jeremy J. Taylor, Member 
 
 
________________________                            _________________________ 
Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member    Keith W. Radig, Member 
 
 
 
                                          ________________________ 
                                               Mark E. Nelson, Member 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 













WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/4/2024 12/10/2024

Karen James, Administrative Assistant

✔

✔

Approval of lifting tax suspensions for petitioners who failed to re-certify their income or income
does not qualify for continued tax suspension

Annually, the Board of Supervisors requires those receiving tax suspensions to re-certify their income. Those petitioners who fail to re-certify their income by the
deadline or if their income does not qualify for continued tax suspension, will be turned over to the Board of Supervisors for action on lifting the tax suspension.

None

To lift the tax suspension of the petitioners that are listed on the attachment.

Approval of lifting tax suspensions for petitioners who failed to re-certify their income or income does not
qualify for continued tax suspension.



     

     

     

HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT         
                                                                             

MEMORANDUM OF PERSONNEL TRANSACTIONS                                                       
                          
                                         * PERSONNEL ACTION CODE:          
DATE:  _December 10th, 2024__                  A- Appointment                      R-Reclassification 

                                                                                   T - Transfer   E- End of Probation 

                                                                                        P - Promotion   S - Separation 

      D - Demotion   O – Other 

 

TO:  WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 

NAME 

 

DEPARTMENT 

EFFECTIVE 

DATE 

 

JOB TITLE 

SALARY 

REQUESTED 

 

% 

INCREASE 

 

* 

 

REMARKS 

 

 

Harmon, 

Hayden 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

09/16/2024 

 

 

Civilian Jailer 

 

 

$26.86/hour 

 

 

5%=$1.29/hr 

 

 

R 

Per Sheriff: 

Accounting for 

Previous Years 

of Service. 

Move from 2nd 

to 1st Class. 

 

 

Vanderscaaf, 

Tristen 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

03/18/2024  

 

 

Civilian Jailer 

 

 

$26.86/hour 

 

 

5%=$1.29/hr 

 

 

R 

Per Sheriff: 

Accounting for 

Previous Years 

of Service. 

Move from 2nd 

to 1st Class. 

 

 

Krause, James 

 

 

 

Secondary Roads 

 

 

12-09-2024 

 

 

 

Sign Technician 

 

 

$29.28/hour 

 

 
 

1%=$0.30/hr 

 

 

R 

Per CWA: 

From Step 3 to 

Step 4. 

Anniversary 

Date: 

12/16/2024 

 

 

Masters, 

Donovan 

 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

 

12-09-2024 

 

 

 

Deputy 

 

 

$39.64/hour 

 

 

 

 

10%=$3.58/hr 

 

 

R 

Per CWA: 

From Senior to 

Master. 

Anniversary 

Date: 

12/18/2024 

 

 

Tompkins, 

Aaron 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

12-09-2024 

 

 

Corrections 

Officer 

 

 

 

 

$26.86/hour 

 

 

5%=$1.29/hr 

 

 

R 

Per CWA: 

From 2nd Class 

to First Class. 

Anniversary 

Date: 

12/16/2024 

 

 

Anderson, 

Lisa 

 

 

 

Human Resources 

 

 

12-09-2024 

 

 

Secretary PT 

 

 

$30.72/hour 

 

 

7%=$2.00/hr 

 

 

O 

Transfer from 

PT Temp to 

PT. In-house 

Job Vacancy 

Posted 

11/27/2024. 

 

 

Magana, 

Jared 

 

 

Juvenile Detention 

 

 

12-12-2024 

 

 

Youth Worker 

 

 

$22.05/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

10/23/2024. 

Entry Level 

Salary 

$22.05/hour 

 

 

Sherrill, 

Courtney 

 

 

 

Attorney’s Office 

 

 

12-17-2024 

 

 

Clerk II 

 

 

$20.14/hour 

  

 

A 

Job Vacancy 

Posted on 

2/28/2024. 

Entry Level 

Salary: 

$20.14/hour 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 



     

     

     

 

Garrett, 

Willie 

 

 

 

 

Sheriff’s Office 

 

 

01-29-2025 

 

% Deputy 

Captain 

 

 

S 

 

 

Retired 

 

Nahra, Mark 

 

 

Secondary Roads 

 

02-14-2025 

County 

Engineer 

 

 

   

S 

 

 

Retired 

 

APPROVED BY BOARD DATE:          ______________________________  

 

       

 

MELISSA THOMAS, HR DIRECTOR:        ______________________________ 

           

 









WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/05/2024 12/10/2024

Melissa Thomas HR Director

✔

✔

✔

Approval of the casualty policy with Princeton Excess and Surplus Lines Insurance Company 

The paperwork for the renewal of Woodbury County's casualty insurance is being submitted. It lays out the 
limits and premiums for the 2025 calendar year. 

Renewal of Woodbury County's liability insurance is an annual event (January 1). 

The Princeton Excess annual premium for 2025 is $356,365.61.This is an increase of $40,002.86 from 2024. 
Cost specifics and historical information is attached. 

Please accept the renewal paperwork and provide necessary signature. 

Accept and sign the 2025 casualty renewal.  























WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/04/2024 12/10/2024

Melissa Thomas HR Director 

✔

✔

Approval to create a Human Resources' part time secretary position.  

Human Resources is seeking to create a part time position that will accrue vacation and other benefits. 

HR currently has a temp secretary position which would be replaced by this part time position. 

The previous temp position was budgeted for 3 months. This position should be budgeted for the entire fiscal 
year at a cost of approximately $25,055.00 in wages which is offset by an open senior clerk position. 

Approve the motion

Motion to approve a part time HR secretary and deauthorize the temporary secretary position. 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

12/4/2024 12/10/204

Patrick Mouw

✔

✔

Public hearing and approval of engineer's report for creation of Salix Drainage District 

Hold the public hearing that was scheduled for the creation of the Salix Drainage District.  Based on comments 
during the public hearing, approve the creation of the Salix Drainage District.

On November 21, 2023 the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors held a public hearing on the report. The report was not 
approved at that meeting date.  Rather, the engineer was directed to hold an informational meeting and develop an updated report. 
Attached is the updated report addressing the concerns addressed by the objection.  
 

It is anticipated that there will not be any direct financial impact to the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors.  
There will be financial impacts to the Secondary Road Department if the report is approved and improvements are 
constructed.

It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors open the public hearing and after hearing comments from the 
public, approve the engineer's report.

Motion to approve the engineer's report. 



R E P O R T  F O R
C R E AT I O N  O F  D R A I N A G E  D I S T R I C T

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT

A M E N D E D  D E C E M B E R  1 0 ,  2 0 2 4
S A L I X ,  I O WA

203 Sergeant Square Drive, Suite B
Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054

712-943-5055 phone 712-943-5088 fax
www.v-k.net

Contact: Patrick Mouw, pmouw@v-k.net







TABLE OF CONTENTS

REPORT SUMMARY

OPINION OF COST

PARCEL INFORMATION

MAP OF PROPOSED DRAINAGE DISTRICT

PROPOSED DRAINAGE DISTRICT EASEMENTS

PETITION

PUMPING AGREEMENT

OBJECTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS FOR DRAINAGE DISTRICT

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 4

DRAINAGE DISTRICT CREATION 
REPORT SUMMARY
Soon after signing the Agreement for Professional Services for the creation of the Salix Drainage District between the Woodbury 
County Board of Supervisors, acting as Trustees for the Salix Drainage District, and Veenstra & Kimm, Inc., a meeting was held by 
Veenstra & Kimm with two of the petitioners for the establishment of the drainage district.  They requested that the district have the 
approximate boundary of the Union Pacific Railroad on the east, 275th Street (Poplar Street) on the north, 280th Street on the south, 
and the west line of the NW and the SW of the SE quarter of section 33-87-47 on the west.  These boundaries were shown on the 
map submitted with the Petition dated November 14, 2022.  A copy of the Petition is included with this report.  

Shortly after the meeting, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. began surveying the lands. The topography is very flat.  Generally, the slope of the 
ground within the proposed district slopes from the north towards the south and excluding the appearance of an old oxbow in the 
southeast corner of the district, the ground also slopes from the east to the west.  These factors and others lead to the proposed 
establishment of the Main Ditch being placed predominantly along 280th Street.  

After the initial surveys were completed, Rick Patterson approached the petitioners and the engineer requesting that some of his 
land be included in the district.  Rick Patterson initially requested a lateral along Benton Avenue commencing at 280th Street and 
continuing north to the Interstate 29 right-of-way.  However, after the initial design was completed, it was determined that buildings, 
trees and grain bins would need to be removed in order to develop the ditch.  It was therefore determined that Lateral 1 would best 
be placed predominantly parallel with Interstate 29 rather than along Benton Avenue.   

Regarding capacity of the ditch, a 5-year storm event was utilized.  This required a 20’ wide bottom width with 3 horizontal 
to 1 vertical side slopes from the outlet to near station 51+00.  Continuing upstream the bottom width decreased to 12’.  This 
was possible due to the depth of the ditch.  At the outlet the average depth of the ditch is approximately 6’, which increases to 
approximately 9’ upstream from station 51+00.  At the confluence with Lateral 1 the ditch bottom decreases again, down to 4’.  This 
4’ width is maintained through the remaining length of the main ditch.  

The main ditch slope of the profile is designed at a rate of 0.0474% or 2.5’ per mile from the outlet to station 42+92.91.  From station 
42+92.91 to station 55+36.65 the slope of the profile is 0.294% or 15.5’ per mile.  Near this location there is a significant change in 
elevation of the ground, thus the significant change in slope.  From station 55+30.65 to the beginning of the main ditch the slope of 
the profile is 0.0228% or 1.2’ per mile.  Other slopes in this portion were reviewed.  However, this slope proved to be the lowest cost 
when reviewed based on hydraulics, right-of-way, and construction of the ditch.  It also afforded positive drainage for Lateral 1 and 
Lateral 2.

Lateral 1 was designed with a bottom width of 4’ and 3 horizontal to 1 vertical side slopes.  Within portions of the lateral the bottom 
width could have been reduced for hydraulic capacity, however construction of a ditch with narrower bottom widths has previously 
proven to be problematic for the use of conventional construction equipment and thus was not recommended.  The slope of the 
ditch profile is 0.0242% or 1.28’ per mile.  The profile was determined from the flowline of the main ditch at the confluence of Lateral 
1 and the 30” RCP culvert under Interstate 29. 

Lateral 2 was designed with a bottom width of 4’ and 3 horizontal to 1 vertical side slopes.  Within portions of the lateral the bottom 
width could have been reduced for hydraulic capacity, however construction of a ditch with narrower bottom widths has previously 
proved to be problematic with conventional construction equipment and thus was not recommended.  The slope of the ditch profile 
is 0.0869% or 4.59’ per mile.  The profile was determined from the flowline of the main ditch at the confluence of Lateral 2 and the 
flow line of the 15” RCP culvert near the intersection of Lakeport Street and Maple Street. 

Lateral 3 as shown in the original proposed design is the existing storm sewer system of the City of Salix, Iowa.  In conversations with 
the petitioners, it was recommended that this be included in the plans for the creation of the drainage district.

Prior to the public hearing scheduled for November 21, 2023, an objection to the proposed creation of the Salix Drainage District was 
filed by Heidman Law office on behalf of The Wagners.  They are against the design and the location of the ditch being next to their 
property.  At the hearing it was decided to postpone a decision and schedule a follow up hearing to be held on February 20, 2024.  It 
was also requested that prior to the follow up hearing, the engineer was to hold an informational meeting to discuss alternatives to 
the design and then to amend the report based on feedback from the informational meeting.



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 5

On January 18, 2024, an informational meeting was held by the engineer at the Woodbury County Courthouse.  The goal of the 
meeting was to determine the preferred route from Salix, Iowa and west to Snyder Bend Lake.  At the meeting, three proposed 
routes were presented.  A preliminary estimate of cost and the typical cross sections for each route were provided.  Discussion 
centered around the different options presented.  None of the three proposed routes were preferred by the group.  However, there 
was consensus on wanting to help the City of Salix find an outlet for their storm water.  The City’s agreement to pump storm water 
into the Farmers Drainage District was scheduled to terminate December 31, 2023.  On December 18, 2023, the Farmers Drainage 
District agreed to extend the pumping agreement with the City of Salix to December 2025.  The City of Salix was concerned that the 
agreement may not be extended again.  Some people in the audience volunteered to contact members of the Farmers Drainage 
District to discuss a new agreement be reached between the two parties. 

At the January 23, 2024, meeting of the Woodbury County Supervisors the public hearing that was originally scheduled for February 
20 was postponed to the March 19, 2024, supervisors meeting.

At the March 19, 2024, Woodbury County Supervisors meeting, petitioner Kevin Nelson addressed the Supervisors regarding a 
positive meeting that had occurred between the Farmers Drainage District and the City of Salix.  Kevin also addressed the Supervisors 
with a suggestion to minimize the drainage district to locations east of Interstate I-29 and have the outlet of the new drainage district 
drain into the Farmers Drainage District.  Kevin Nelson also requested that the next public hearing be scheduled for June 18, 2024. 
 
At the June 18, 2024, Woodbury County Supervisors meeting the scheduled June 18, 2024, public hearing was postponed to the 
August 20, 2024, meeting.

At the August 6, 2024, Woodbury County Supervisors meeting it was decided that the hearing scheduled for August 20, 2024, be 
postponed to the December 10th, 2024, meeting. 

Since the supervisors meeting on March 19, 2024, the City of Salix has been collaborating with the Farmers Drainage District.  On 
July 11, 2024, a five-year pumping agreement was signed.  In addition, communication has been ongoing and future collaboration 
appears to be possible.  Thus, the new proposed drainage district has been designed with the outlet at the currently installed pump 
in the northwest corner at the intersection of 280th Street and South Tama Street.  

The new proposed main ditch will commence at the pump and proceed north along the west side of South Tama Street to the culvert 
outlet just south of Walnut Street.   The main ditch will continue along the north side of 280th Street and the east side of Lakeport 
Street.  As part of the report, the district will not be purchasing any additional right-of-way that is not already part of an existing 
easement.  The proposed ditch will be within the existing easements of South Tama Street, 280th Street, and Lakeport Street.  The 
existing main ditch has an approximate width of 10 feet to 4 feet and with a varied slope.  As part of this report the exiting ditch 
elevations are shown in the Plans section. 

Lateral 1 and lateral 2 are the existing storm sewer systems of the City of Salix, Iowa.  In conversations with the petitioners, it is 
recommended that these be included into the plans for creation of the drainage district. 

The above descriptions for the main ditch and laterals are general in nature.  A more detailed description can be found in the 
easements portion of this report. 



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 6



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 7



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 8



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 9



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 10



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 11



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12



PLOTTED:

SC
A

LE

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

EC
K

ED

A
PP

R
O

VE
D

D
A

TE

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

N
O

TE
S:

D
W

G
. N

O
.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

V&K REF.Tuesday, December 3, 2024 4:16:50 PM \\VKSGT-FS\SGTSHARE\0100\0151-WOODBURY_COUNTY\0151-0026_SALIX_DRAINAGE_DISTRICT_CREATION\SURVEY\XREF\EASEMENTS

C
W

B
PE

M
C

W
B

8/
11

/2
02

3

1"
 =

 4
00

15
12

6

1 
O

F 
2

280TH ST.

1.1 JOCHUM, LEO & BEVERLY
PARCEL NO. OWNER

LEGEND

2.1 JOCHUM, GREGORY & KRISTA

1.1 2.1

TAM
A ST.

LAKEPO
R

T ST.

WALNUT ST.

MAPLE ST.

0.06

EXISTING ROW
ACRES

1.90

TOTAL
DRAINAGE DITCH

ACRES

S1/4 COR.
SEC. 34

SE COR.
SEC. 34

S1/4 COR.
SEC. 35

MAIN DITCH

LATERAL 2

LATERAL 1

2.2 JOCHUM, GREGORY & KRISTA 1.22

2.2

0.06

1.90

1.22

3.1 CITY OF SALIX 2.21 2.21

3.1



PLOTTED:

SC
A

LE

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

EC
K

ED

A
PP

R
O

VE
D

D
A

TE

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

N
O

TE
S:

D
W

G
. N

O
.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

V&K REF.Tuesday, December 3, 2024 4:16:32 PM \\VKSGT-FS\SGTSHARE\0100\0151-WOODBURY_COUNTY\0151-0026_SALIX_DRAINAGE_DISTRICT_CREATION\SURVEY\XREF\EASEMENTS

C
W

B
PE

M
C

W
B

8/
11

/2
02

3

1"
 =

 3
00

15
12

6

2 
O

F 
2

PARCEL NO. OWNER

LEGEND

TAM
A ST.

WALNUT ST.

MAPLE ST.

LAKEPO
R

T       ST.

3.3

3.3 CITY OF SALIX

3.2

3.2 CITY OF SALIX

1,066 L.F.
OF 12" TO

24" STORM

WILLOW ST.
O

AK
 S

T.

EL
M

 S
T.

TR
AV

IS
 S

T.

TA
LB

O
T 

ST
.

PI
N

E 
ST

.

LEGEND
EXISTING ROW

ACRES

2.02

2.14

TOTAL
DRAINAGE DITCH

ACRES

2.02

2.14

LATERAL 2

LATERAL 1

2,168 L.F.
OF 12" TO

15" STORM

MAIN DITCH



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 13



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 14



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 15



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 16



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 17























0 + 00

5 + 00

10 + 00

14
+ 46

.78

0
+

00

5
+

00

10
+

00

15
+

00

20
+

00

25 + 00

30 + 00

35 + 00

40 + 00

41+ 52.40

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
OVERALL PLAN

 
D.01

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 D

1 
O

VE
R

A
LL

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:0

7 
PM

0' 200' 400'



0+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

1+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

2+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

3+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

4+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

5+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

6+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

7+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
74

.5
8

10
74

.5
8

10
75

.2
2

10
75

.2
2

10
75

.1
9

10
75

.1
9

10
75

.1
1

10
75

.1
1

10
75

.2
3

10
75

.2
3

10
75

.3
5

10
75

.3
5

10
75

.4
2

10
75

.4
2

10
75

.4
8

10
75

.4
8

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W1

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:4

5 
PM



8+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

9+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

10+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

11+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

12+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

13+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

14+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

14+46.78

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.4
4

10
75

.4
4

10
75

.3
7

10
75

.3
7

10
75

.3
8

10
75

.3
8

10
75

.4
4

10
75

.4
4

10
75

.6
8

10
75

.6
8

10
76

.0
5

10
76

.0
5

10
76

.1
1

10
76

.1
1

10
79

.1
2

10
79

.1
2

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W2

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:4

6 
PM



0+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

1+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

2+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

3+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

4+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

5+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

6+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

7+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
74

.5
8

10
74

.5
8

10
75

.1
7

10
75

.1
7

10
75

.0
3

10
75

.0
3

10
74

.8
9

10
74

.8
9

10
74

.9
6

10
74

.9
6

10
75

.0
5

10
75

.0
5

10
75

.1
8

10
75

.1
8

10
75

.2
6

10
75

.2
6

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W3

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:5

1 
PM



8+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

9+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

11+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

12+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

13+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

14+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

15+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.2
5

10
75

.2
5

10
75

.1
8

10
75

.1
8

10
75

.0
7

10
75

.0
7

10
75

.1
4

10
75

.1
4

10
75

.2
1

10
75

.2
1

10
75

.2
1

10
75

.2
1

10
75

.2
2

10
75

.2
2

10
75

.2
8

10
75

.2
8

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W4

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:5

6 
PM



16+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

17+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

18+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

19+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

20+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

21+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

22+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

23+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.3
4

10
75

.3
4

10
75

.5
9

10
75

.5
9

10
75

.9
5

10
75

.9
5

10
76

.2
6

10
76

.2
6

10
76

.2
1

10
76

.2
1

10
76

.1
5

10
76

.1
5

10
76

.1
0

10
76

.1
0

10
75

.9
1

10
75

.9
1

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W5

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

12
:0

1 
PM



24+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

25+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

26+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

27+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

28+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

29+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

30+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

31+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.6
9

10
75

.6
9

10
75

.8
5

10
75

.8
5

10
76

.1
0

10
76

.1
0

10
76

.3
1

10
76

.3
1

10
76

.3
4

10
76

.3
4

10
79

.6
8

10
79

.6
8

10
76

.1
5

10
76

.1
5

10
75

.9
8

10
75

.9
8

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W6

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

12
:0

6 
PM



32+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

33+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

34+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

35+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

36+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

37+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

38+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

39+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.9
2

10
75

.9
2

10
75

.9
7

10
75

.9
7

10
75

.9
6

10
75

.9
6

10
75

.9
0

10
75

.9
0

10
75

.8
4

10
75

.8
4

10
76

.0
4

10
76

.0
4

10
76

.2
4

10
76

.2
4

10
76

.2
8

10
76

.2
8

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W7

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

12
:1

1 
PM



40+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

41+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

41+52.40

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

10
76

.2
1

10
76

.2
1

10
76

.2
6

10
76

.2
6

10
78

.6
0

10
78

.6
0

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W8

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

12
:1

6 
PM



R E P O R T  F O R
C R E AT I O N  O F  D R A I N A G E  D I S T R I C T

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT

A M E N D E D  D E C E M B E R  1 0 ,  2 0 2 4
S A L I X ,  I O WA

203 Sergeant Square Drive, Suite B
Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054

712-943-5055 phone 712-943-5088 fax
www.v-k.net

Contact: Patrick Mouw, pmouw@v-k.net







TABLE OF CONTENTS

REPORT SUMMARY

OPINION OF COST

PARCEL INFORMATION

MAP OF PROPOSED DRAINAGE DISTRICT

PROPOSED DRAINAGE DISTRICT EASEMENTS

PETITION

PUMPING AGREEMENT

OBJECTION

PRELIMINARY PLANS FOR DRAINAGE DISTRICT

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 4

DRAINAGE DISTRICT CREATION 
REPORT SUMMARY
Soon after signing the Agreement for Professional Services for the creation of the Salix Drainage District between the Woodbury 
County Board of Supervisors, acting as Trustees for the Salix Drainage District, and Veenstra & Kimm, Inc., a meeting was held by 
Veenstra & Kimm with two of the petitioners for the establishment of the drainage district.  They requested that the district have the 
approximate boundary of the Union Pacific Railroad on the east, 275th Street (Poplar Street) on the north, 280th Street on the south, 
and the west line of the NW and the SW of the SE quarter of section 33-87-47 on the west.  These boundaries were shown on the 
map submitted with the Petition dated November 14, 2022.  A copy of the Petition is included with this report.  

Shortly after the meeting, Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. began surveying the lands. The topography is very flat.  Generally, the slope of the 
ground within the proposed district slopes from the north towards the south and excluding the appearance of an old oxbow in the 
southeast corner of the district, the ground also slopes from the east to the west.  These factors and others lead to the proposed 
establishment of the Main Ditch being placed predominantly along 280th Street.  

After the initial surveys were completed, Rick Patterson approached the petitioners and the engineer requesting that some of his 
land be included in the district.  Rick Patterson initially requested a lateral along Benton Avenue commencing at 280th Street and 
continuing north to the Interstate 29 right-of-way.  However, after the initial design was completed, it was determined that buildings, 
trees and grain bins would need to be removed in order to develop the ditch.  It was therefore determined that Lateral 1 would best 
be placed predominantly parallel with Interstate 29 rather than along Benton Avenue.   

Regarding capacity of the ditch, a 5-year storm event was utilized.  This required a 20’ wide bottom width with 3 horizontal 
to 1 vertical side slopes from the outlet to near station 51+00.  Continuing upstream the bottom width decreased to 12’.  This 
was possible due to the depth of the ditch.  At the outlet the average depth of the ditch is approximately 6’, which increases to 
approximately 9’ upstream from station 51+00.  At the confluence with Lateral 1 the ditch bottom decreases again, down to 4’.  This 
4’ width is maintained through the remaining length of the main ditch.  

The main ditch slope of the profile is designed at a rate of 0.0474% or 2.5’ per mile from the outlet to station 42+92.91.  From station 
42+92.91 to station 55+36.65 the slope of the profile is 0.294% or 15.5’ per mile.  Near this location there is a significant change in 
elevation of the ground, thus the significant change in slope.  From station 55+30.65 to the beginning of the main ditch the slope of 
the profile is 0.0228% or 1.2’ per mile.  Other slopes in this portion were reviewed.  However, this slope proved to be the lowest cost 
when reviewed based on hydraulics, right-of-way, and construction of the ditch.  It also afforded positive drainage for Lateral 1 and 
Lateral 2.

Lateral 1 was designed with a bottom width of 4’ and 3 horizontal to 1 vertical side slopes.  Within portions of the lateral the bottom 
width could have been reduced for hydraulic capacity, however construction of a ditch with narrower bottom widths has previously 
proven to be problematic for the use of conventional construction equipment and thus was not recommended.  The slope of the 
ditch profile is 0.0242% or 1.28’ per mile.  The profile was determined from the flowline of the main ditch at the confluence of Lateral 
1 and the 30” RCP culvert under Interstate 29. 

Lateral 2 was designed with a bottom width of 4’ and 3 horizontal to 1 vertical side slopes.  Within portions of the lateral the bottom 
width could have been reduced for hydraulic capacity, however construction of a ditch with narrower bottom widths has previously 
proved to be problematic with conventional construction equipment and thus was not recommended.  The slope of the ditch profile 
is 0.0869% or 4.59’ per mile.  The profile was determined from the flowline of the main ditch at the confluence of Lateral 2 and the 
flow line of the 15” RCP culvert near the intersection of Lakeport Street and Maple Street. 

Lateral 3 as shown in the original proposed design is the existing storm sewer system of the City of Salix, Iowa.  In conversations with 
the petitioners, it was recommended that this be included in the plans for the creation of the drainage district.

Prior to the public hearing scheduled for November 21, 2023, an objection to the proposed creation of the Salix Drainage District was 
filed by Heidman Law office on behalf of The Wagners.  They are against the design and the location of the ditch being next to their 
property.  At the hearing it was decided to postpone a decision and schedule a follow up hearing to be held on February 20, 2024.  It 
was also requested that prior to the follow up hearing, the engineer was to hold an informational meeting to discuss alternatives to 
the design and then to amend the report based on feedback from the informational meeting.



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 5

On January 18, 2024, an informational meeting was held by the engineer at the Woodbury County Courthouse.  The goal of the 
meeting was to determine the preferred route from Salix, Iowa and west to Snyder Bend Lake.  At the meeting, three proposed 
routes were presented.  A preliminary estimate of cost and the typical cross sections for each route were provided.  Discussion 
centered around the different options presented.  None of the three proposed routes were preferred by the group.  However, there 
was consensus on wanting to help the City of Salix find an outlet for their storm water.  The City’s agreement to pump storm water 
into the Farmers Drainage District was scheduled to terminate December 31, 2023.  On December 18, 2023, the Farmers Drainage 
District agreed to extend the pumping agreement with the City of Salix to December 2025.  The City of Salix was concerned that the 
agreement may not be extended again.  Some people in the audience volunteered to contact members of the Farmers Drainage 
District to discuss a new agreement be reached between the two parties. 

At the January 23, 2024, meeting of the Woodbury County Supervisors the public hearing that was originally scheduled for February 
20 was postponed to the March 19, 2024, supervisors meeting.

At the March 19, 2024, Woodbury County Supervisors meeting, petitioner Kevin Nelson addressed the Supervisors regarding a 
positive meeting that had occurred between the Farmers Drainage District and the City of Salix.  Kevin also addressed the Supervisors 
with a suggestion to minimize the drainage district to locations east of Interstate I-29 and have the outlet of the new drainage district 
drain into the Farmers Drainage District.  Kevin Nelson also requested that the next public hearing be scheduled for June 18, 2024. 
 
At the June 18, 2024, Woodbury County Supervisors meeting the scheduled June 18, 2024, public hearing was postponed to the 
August 20, 2024, meeting.

At the August 6, 2024, Woodbury County Supervisors meeting it was decided that the hearing scheduled for August 20, 2024, be 
postponed to the December 10th, 2024, meeting. 

Since the supervisors meeting on March 19, 2024, the City of Salix has been collaborating with the Farmers Drainage District.  On 
July 11, 2024, a five-year pumping agreement was signed.  In addition, communication has been ongoing and future collaboration 
appears to be possible.  Thus, the new proposed drainage district has been designed with the outlet at the currently installed pump 
in the northwest corner at the intersection of 280th Street and South Tama Street.  

The new proposed main ditch will commence at the pump and proceed north along the west side of South Tama Street to the culvert 
outlet just south of Walnut Street.   The main ditch will continue along the north side of 280th Street and the east side of Lakeport 
Street.  As part of the report, the district will not be purchasing any additional right-of-way that is not already part of an existing 
easement.  The proposed ditch will be within the existing easements of South Tama Street, 280th Street, and Lakeport Street.  The 
existing main ditch has an approximate width of 10 feet to 4 feet and with a varied slope.  As part of this report the exiting ditch 
elevations are shown in the Plans section. 

Lateral 1 and lateral 2 are the existing storm sewer systems of the City of Salix, Iowa.  In conversations with the petitioners, it is 
recommended that these be included into the plans for creation of the drainage district. 

The above descriptions for the main ditch and laterals are general in nature.  A more detailed description can be found in the 
easements portion of this report. 



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 6



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 7



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 8



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 9



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 10



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 11



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 12



PLOTTED:

SC
A

LE

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

EC
K

ED

A
PP

R
O

VE
D

D
A

TE

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

N
O

TE
S:

D
W

G
. N

O
.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

V&K REF.Tuesday, December 3, 2024 4:16:50 PM \\VKSGT-FS\SGTSHARE\0100\0151-WOODBURY_COUNTY\0151-0026_SALIX_DRAINAGE_DISTRICT_CREATION\SURVEY\XREF\EASEMENTS

C
W

B
PE

M
C

W
B

8/
11

/2
02

3

1"
 =

 4
00

15
12

6

1 
O

F 
2

280TH ST.

1.1 JOCHUM, LEO & BEVERLY
PARCEL NO. OWNER

LEGEND

2.1 JOCHUM, GREGORY & KRISTA

1.1 2.1

TAM
A ST.

LAKEPO
R

T ST.

WALNUT ST.

MAPLE ST.

0.06

EXISTING ROW
ACRES

1.90

TOTAL
DRAINAGE DITCH

ACRES

S1/4 COR.
SEC. 34

SE COR.
SEC. 34

S1/4 COR.
SEC. 35

MAIN DITCH

LATERAL 2

LATERAL 1

2.2 JOCHUM, GREGORY & KRISTA 1.22

2.2

0.06

1.90

1.22

3.1 CITY OF SALIX 2.21 2.21

3.1



PLOTTED:

SC
A

LE

D
R

A
W

N

C
H

EC
K

ED

A
PP

R
O

VE
D

D
A

TE

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R

N
O

TE
S:

D
W

G
. N

O
.

PR
O

JE
C

T 
#

V&K REF.Tuesday, December 3, 2024 4:16:32 PM \\VKSGT-FS\SGTSHARE\0100\0151-WOODBURY_COUNTY\0151-0026_SALIX_DRAINAGE_DISTRICT_CREATION\SURVEY\XREF\EASEMENTS

C
W

B
PE

M
C

W
B

8/
11

/2
02

3

1"
 =

 3
00

15
12

6

2 
O

F 
2

PARCEL NO. OWNER

LEGEND

TAM
A ST.

WALNUT ST.

MAPLE ST.

LAKEPO
R

T       ST.

3.3

3.3 CITY OF SALIX

3.2

3.2 CITY OF SALIX

1,066 L.F.
OF 12" TO

24" STORM

WILLOW ST.
O

AK
 S

T.

EL
M

 S
T.

TR
AV

IS
 S

T.

TA
LB

O
T 

ST
.

PI
N

E 
ST

.

LEGEND
EXISTING ROW

ACRES

2.02

2.14

TOTAL
DRAINAGE DITCH

ACRES

2.02

2.14

LATERAL 2

LATERAL 1

2,168 L.F.
OF 12" TO

15" STORM

MAIN DITCH



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 13



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 14



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 15



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 16



REPORT FOR CREATION OF SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT 17























0 + 00

5 + 00

10 + 00

14
+ 46

.78

0
+

00

5
+

00

10
+

00

15
+

00

20
+

00

25 + 00

30 + 00

35 + 00

40 + 00

41+ 52.40

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
OVERALL PLAN

 
D.01

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 D

1 
O

VE
R

A
LL

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:0

7 
PM

0' 200' 400'



0+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

1+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

2+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

3+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

4+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

5+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

6+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

7+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
74

.5
8

10
74

.5
8

10
75

.2
2

10
75

.2
2

10
75

.1
9

10
75

.1
9

10
75

.1
1

10
75

.1
1

10
75

.2
3

10
75

.2
3

10
75

.3
5

10
75

.3
5

10
75

.4
2

10
75

.4
2

10
75

.4
8

10
75

.4
8

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W1

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:4

5 
PM



8+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

9+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

10+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

11+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

12+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

13+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

14+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

14+46.78

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.4
4

10
75

.4
4

10
75

.3
7

10
75

.3
7

10
75

.3
8

10
75

.3
8

10
75

.4
4

10
75

.4
4

10
75

.6
8

10
75

.6
8

10
76

.0
5

10
76

.0
5

10
76

.1
1

10
76

.1
1

10
79

.1
2

10
79

.1
2

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W2

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:4

6 
PM



0+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

1+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

2+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

3+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

4+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

5+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

6+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

7+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
74

.5
8

10
74

.5
8

10
75

.1
7

10
75

.1
7

10
75

.0
3

10
75

.0
3

10
74

.8
9

10
74

.8
9

10
74

.9
6

10
74

.9
6

10
75

.0
5

10
75

.0
5

10
75

.1
8

10
75

.1
8

10
75

.2
6

10
75

.2
6

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W3

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:5

1 
PM



8+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

9+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

11+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

12+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

13+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

14+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

15+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.2
5

10
75

.2
5

10
75

.1
8

10
75

.1
8

10
75

.0
7

10
75

.0
7

10
75

.1
4

10
75

.1
4

10
75

.2
1

10
75

.2
1

10
75

.2
1

10
75

.2
1

10
75

.2
2

10
75

.2
2

10
75

.2
8

10
75

.2
8

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W4

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

11
:5

6 
PM



16+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

17+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

18+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

19+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

20+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

21+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

22+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

23+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.3
4

10
75

.3
4

10
75

.5
9

10
75

.5
9

10
75

.9
5

10
75

.9
5

10
76

.2
6

10
76

.2
6

10
76

.2
1

10
76

.2
1

10
76

.1
5

10
76

.1
5

10
76

.1
0

10
76

.1
0

10
75

.9
1

10
75

.9
1

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W5

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

12
:0

1 
PM



24+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

25+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

26+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

27+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

28+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

29+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

30+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

31+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.6
9

10
75

.6
9

10
75

.8
5

10
75

.8
5

10
76

.1
0

10
76

.1
0

10
76

.3
1

10
76

.3
1

10
76

.3
4

10
76

.3
4

10
79

.6
8

10
79

.6
8

10
76

.1
5

10
76

.1
5

10
75

.9
8

10
75

.9
8

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W6

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

12
:0

6 
PM



32+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

33+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

34+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

35+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

36+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

37+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

38+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

39+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

10
75

.9
2

10
75

.9
2

10
75

.9
7

10
75

.9
7

10
75

.9
6

10
75

.9
6

10
75

.9
0

10
75

.9
0

10
75

.8
4

10
75

.8
4

10
76

.0
4

10
76

.0
4

10
76

.2
4

10
76

.2
4

10
76

.2
8

10
76

.2
8

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W7

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

12
:1

1 
PM



40+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

41+00.00

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1110

0 10 200-10-20

41+52.40

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

1050

1060

1070

1080

1090

1100

0 10 200-10-20

10
76

.2
1

10
76

.2
1

10
76

.2
6

10
76

.2
6

10
78

.6
0

10
78

.6
0

DWG. NO.

PROJECT

PL
O

TT
ED

:
FI

LE
 P

A
TH

:
X-

R
EF

S:
 1

51
26

 A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T

SCALE

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

DATE

ISSUED FOR

DATE REVISIONS

203 Sergeant Square Dr. - Suite B    ●    Sergeant Bluff, Iowa 51054-0220
712-943-5055    ●    712-943-5088(FAX)    ●    877-241-8009(WATS)

SALIX DRAINAGE DISTRICT
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

15126

 
SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS

 
W8

AS NOTED

JWD

PEM

PEM

REPORT

09-12-2023

\\V
K

SG
T-

FS
\S

G
TS

H
A

R
E\

01
00

\0
15

1-
W

O
O

D
B

U
R

Y_
C

O
U

N
TY

\0
15

1-
00

26
_S

A
LI

X_
D

R
A

IN
A

G
E_

D
IS

TR
IC

T_
C

R
EA

TI
O

N
\C

A
D

D
\_

PR
O

D
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S\

A
M

EN
D

ED
 R

EP
O

R
T\

A
M

EN
 W

1-
10

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
, D

ec
em

be
r 4

, 2
02

4 
1:

12
:1

6 
PM



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:   

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing    Other:  Informational      Attachments    ✔

✔✔

A) Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 11/25/24
meeting to approve the final plat of Oakridge Addition, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury County, Iowa.
B) Motion to accept and approve the final plat of Oakridge Addition, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury
County, Iowa with the condition that an access easement be executed as presented.

The Oakridge Livestock Company, Inc. has filed for a two (2) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel
#864407400003 referenced above. This subdivision is being completed to split the dwelling location from the farm ground. This
minor subdivision proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on November 14, 2024. The
neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a November 8, 2024 letter about the November 25, 2024 Zoning Commission
public hearing. Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have
been requested to comment. The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure
requirements and found that the lot(s) have adequate access. This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning
District and is not located in the floodplain nor within two (2) miles of an incorporated jurisdiction, therefore not requiring
extraterritorial review. Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance,
the proposal can meet appropriate criteria for approval with the an easement granting the proposed Lot 1 access to Jasper Avenue.
On November 25, 2024, the Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend to the Board of Supervisors the acceptance and approval
of the Oakridge Addition subdivision plat with the condition that the easement be executed as presented.

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 864407400003
Township/Range: T86N R44W (Little Sioux)
Section: 7
Quarter: NE ¼ of the SE ¼
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Zone X (Not in Floodplain)
Property Address: 2963 Jasper Ave., Hornick, IA 51026

The Supervisors will receive the Woodbury County Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Commission's recommendation and final
staff report on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Board may table the matter
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat.

Daniel J. Priestley

12/10/2412/5/24



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes ☐☐ No       ☐☐

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

A) Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 11/25/24
meeting to approve the final plat of Oakridge Addition, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury County, Iowa.

B) Motion to accept and approve the final plat of Oakridge Addition, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury
County, Iowa with the condition that an access easement be executed as presented.

Receive the final report and P&Z Commission's recommendation from their 11/25/24 meeting.

Approve the final plat and authorize the Chairman to sign the resolution.

0



1 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING 
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax) 

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                         Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk 
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

 

 

FINAL REPORT – DECEMBER 4, 2024 
OAKRIDGE ADDITION – MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL 

 
APPLICATION DETAILS 

Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Oakridge Livestock Company, Inc. 

Application Type: Minor Subdivision 

Name of Subdivision: Oakridge Addition 

Application Date: November 1, 2024 

Number of Lots: 2 

Total Acres: 10.26 

Extraterritorial Review: None 

Legal Notice Date: November 14, 2024 

Neighbor(s) Notice Date: November 8, 2024 

Stakeholder(s) Notice Date: November 5, 2024 

Zoning Commission Public 
Hearing Date: 

November 25, 2024 

Board of Supervisors 
Agenda Date: 

December 10, 2024 

Attorney: Jay Phipps 

Surveyor: Gregg A. Stroschein 
 

PROPERTY DETAILS 

Parcel(s): 864407400003 

Township/Range: T86N R44W (Little Sioux) 

Section: 7 

Quarter: NE ¼ of the SE ¼  

Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 

Floodplain: Zone X (Not in Floodplain) 

Property Address: 2963 Jasper Ave., Hornick, IA 51026 
 

CONTENTS 

Summary, Aerial Map, Plat Excerpt, & Recommendation 
 

 

Legal Notification 
 

 

Neighbor(s) Notification 
 

 

Stakeholder(s) Comments 
 

 

Review Criteria / Applicant Responses 
 

 

Application 
 

 

Supporting Documentation 
 

 

 

 

SUMMARY 
The Oakridge Livestock Company, Inc. has filed for a two (2) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel #864407400003 referenced 
above.  This subdivision is being completed to split the dwelling location from the farm ground.  This minor subdivision proposal has been properly 
noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on November 14, 2024.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a November 8, 
2024 letter about the November 25, 2024 Zoning Commission public hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and 
organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with 
Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lot(s) have adequate access.  This property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Zoning District and is not located in the floodplain nor within two (2) miles of an incorporated jurisdiction, therefore not requiring extraterritorial 
review.  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal can meet 
appropriate criteria for approval with the an easement granting the proposed Lot 1 access to Jasper Avenue.  On November 25, 2024, the Zoning 
Commission voted 4-0 to recommend to the Board of Supervisors the acceptance and approval of the Oakridge Addition subdivision plat with the 
condition that the easement be executed as presented. 

 

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCEPRT 

 

 
 

 

 



2 

 

ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
On November 25, 2024, the Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend to the Board of Supervisors the acceptance and approval of the Oakridge 
Addition subdivision plat with the condition that the easement be executed as presented. 

 



3 

 

 



4 

 



5 

 



6 

 



7 

 

 
 

  



8 

 

APPLICATION 

 
 



9 

 

FINAL PLAT 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



10 

 

 
 
ANY ATTACHMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS FINAL PLAT WILL ALSO BE RECORDED IN THE 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE SEPARATELY IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE 

RECORDING OF THE FINAL PLAT. 

- EASEMENTS 

- MORTGAGE CERTIFICATE, IF APPLICABLE 

- ETC. 

 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING STAFF – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, Planning and Zoning staff: 

 shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in 
accordance with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code. 

 Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning 
Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law. 



11 

 

 shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and 

 Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other 
materials to all relevant stakeholders as required. 

 shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and 

 Staff have received written confirmation that the County Engineer has reviewed and determined that the final plat conforms to the 
engineering and design standards of these regulations, and he has verified the accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data. 

 shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form 
of the plat and related documents; and 

 Staff verified that the final plat conforms to the design standards of these regulations, as well as the required form of the final plat.   

 

 shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make 
recommendations for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties. 

 Staff recommends approval with the condition that an easement be executed to enable permanent access to the proposed Lot 1 across 
Parcel #864408300001 to Jasper Avenue.  

 

                 

 
ZONING COMMISSION – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission: 

 shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior 
to the date of the hearing; and 

 Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have 
also ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met.  

 shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and 

 Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general 
plan, and other policies of the County, or not. Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them available to the 
Commission well in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss 
the final plat and other relevant information. 

 may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and 

 Staff recommends approval with the condition that an easement be executed to enable permanent access to the proposed Lot 1 across 
Parcel #864408300001 to Jasper Avenue. 

 shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the 
form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be 
forwarded to the property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision. 

 During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter 
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate 
with the subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law.  

 

 

EXTRATERRITORAL REVIEW 
There is no incorporated area within two miles of this proposed minor subdivision. 
 

 

 

 



12 

 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION – ZONING COMMISSION MEETING PUBLISHED IN THE SIOUX CITY JOURNAL – November 14, 2024 

 



13 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION 

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing: 

5 

Notification Letter Date: November, 8, 2024 

Public Hearing Board: Zoning Commission 

Public Hearing Date: November 25, 2024 

Phone Inquiries: 1 

Written Inquiries: 0 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting. 
 

 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS 
Oakridge Livestock Company, Inc. 36775 140th St. Mapleton IA 51034 No comments 

Ivener Farms, LLC 3701 Cheyene Blvd. Sioux City IA 51104 No comments 

David E. Waller & Ginger R. Waller 2949 Jasper Ave. Hornick IA 51026 Inquiry about the project and asked if this is for a hog confinement? (11/13/24) 

Carl McGrain and Nancy McGrain 13768 Plum Ave. Mapleton IA 51034 No comments 

Patricia L. Johnson, Trustee of the 
Patricia L. Johnson Declaration of Trust 
dated May 7, 2013 

8254 SW 86th Court 
Road Ocala FL 34481 

No comments 

 

 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments 

CITY OF ANTHON: No comments 

CONCORD TOWNSHIP: No comments 

FIBERCOMM: No comments 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments 

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments 

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments 

LONGLINES: No comments 

LUMEN: No comments 

MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the attached proposed minor subdivision for MEC electric, and we have no 
conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 11/5/24. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments 

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments 

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments 

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. – Jeff Zettel, 
11/12/24. 

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments 

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments 

WIATEL: No comments 

WINNEBAGO TRIBE: No comments 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments 

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments 

WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: SEE MEMO BELOW 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 11/5/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

No comments 

WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: No comments 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this proposal. – Neil Stockfleth, 11/6/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: The 2023 taxes paid in full. – Tina Bertrand, 11/5/24. 
 

 

 



14 

 

COUNTY ENGINEER’S REVIEW MEMO 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



15 

 

EASEMENT DRAFT – MAY BE SUBJECT TO CHANGES BEFORE FINAL RECORDING 

 



16 

 

 
 



17 

 



18 

 



19 

 

 



20 

 

 



21 

 

PICTOMETRY 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



22 

 

PLAT MAP EXCERPT 

 
 

 



23 

 

TITLE OPINION 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



24 

 

PARCEL REPORT(S) 

 



25 

 

 



26 

 

 
 



27 

 

ZONING MAP 

 



28 

 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP – THIS MAP EXPIRES ON JULY 17, 2024 

 



29 

 

ELEVATION MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



30 

 

SOIL MAP(S) 

 



31 

 

SOIL REPORT(S) 

 
 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:   

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing    Other:  Informational      Attachments    ✔

✔✔

A) Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 11/25/24
meeting to approve the final plat of JW Collins Homestead, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury County,
Iowa.
B) Motion to accept and approve the final plat of JW Collins Homestead, a minor subdivision, to
Woodbury County, Iowa.

The Steffe Harlan & Frances Trust has filed for a one (1) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel #894428100005
referenced above. This subdivision is being completed to establish a lot for agricultural uses as it will be used to store grain, hay,
and farm equipment. This minor subdivision proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on
November 14, 2024. The neighbors within 1000 FT have been duly notified via a November 8, 2024 letter about the November 25,
2024 Zoning Commission public hearing. Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations
have been notified and have been requested to comment. The Woodbury County Engineer found the proposal in compliance with
Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lot(s) have adequate access. This property is located in the Agricultural
Preservation (AP) Zoning District and portions are located in the Zone A and Zone X 0.2 percent floodplain. The City of Moville
waived their extraterritorial review authority with the approval of Resolution 2024-43 on November 20, 2024 Based on the
information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate
criteria for approval. On November 25, 2024, the Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend to the Board of Supervisors the
acceptance and approval of the JW Collins Homestead subdivision plat.

PROPERTY DETAILS
Parcel(s): 894428100005
Township/Range: T89N R44W (Arlington)
Section: 28
Quarter: NE ¼ of the NW ¼
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Floodplain: Zone X, 0.2 PCT, Zone X, & Zone A
Property Address: No address.

The Supervisors will receive the Woodbury County Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Commission's recommendation and final
staff report on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Board may table the matter
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat.

Daniel J. Priestley

12/10/2412/5/24



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes ☐☐ No       ☐☐

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

A) Motion to receive the final report and the Zoning Commission's recommendation from their 11/25/24
meeting to approve the final plat of JW Collins Homestead, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury County, Iowa.

B) Motion to accept and approve the final plat of JW Collins Homestead, a minor subdivision, to Woodbury
County, Iowa.

Receive the final report and P&Z Commission's recommendation from their 11/25/24 meeting.

Approve the final plat and authorize the Chairman to sign the resolution.

0



1 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING 
620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, Iowa 51101 

712.279.6609 – 712.279.6530 (Fax) 

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator                                         Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk 
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov 

 

 

FINAL REPORT – DECEMBER 4, 2024 
JW COLLINS HOMESTEAD – MINOR SUBDIVISION PROPOSAL 

 
APPLICATION DETAILS 

Applicant(s)/Owner(s): Steffe Harlan & Frances Trust / 
Cynthia Steffe & Susan Boscone 

Application Type: Minor Subdivision 

Name of Subdivision: JW Collins Homestead 

Application Date: November 1, 2024 

Number of Lots: One (1) 

Total Acres: 2.2 

Extraterritorial Review: Waived on November 20, 2024 
with Resolution 2024-4. 

Legal Notice Date: November 14, 2024 

Neighbor(s) Notice Date: November 8, 2024 

Stakeholder(s) Notice Date: November 5, 2024 

Zoning Commission Public 
Hearing Date: 

November 25, 2024 

Board of Supervisors 
Agenda Date: 

December 10, 2024 

Attorney: Michael Murphy 

Surveyor: David Wilberding 
 

PROPERTY DETAILS 

Parcel(s): 894428100005 

Township/Range: T89N R44W (Arlington) 

Section: 28 

Quarter: NE ¼ of the NW ¼  

Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 

Floodplain: Zone X, 0.2 PCT, Zone X, & Zone A 

Property Address: No address. 
 

CONTENTS 

Summary, Aerial Map, Plat Excerpt, & Recommendation 
 

 

Legal Notification 
 

 

Neighbor(s) Notification 
 

 

Stakeholder(s) Comments 
 

 

Review Criteria / Applicant Responses 
 

 

Application 
 

 

Supporting Documentation 
 

 

 

 

SUMMARY 
The Steffe Harlan & Frances Trust has filed for a one (1) lot minor subdivision on the property identified as Parcel #894428100005 referenced 
above.  This subdivision is being completed to establish a lot for agricultural uses as it will be used to store grain, hay, and farm equipment.  This 
minor subdivision proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal legals section on November 14, 2024.  The neighbors within 1000 FT 
have been duly notified via a November 8, 2024 letter about the November 25, 2024 Zoning Commission public hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders 
including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  The Woodbury County 
Engineer found the proposal in compliance with Iowa Code closure requirements and found that the lot(s) have adequate access.  This property is 
located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and portions are located in the Zone A and Zone X 0.2 percent floodplain.  The City of 
Moville waived their extraterritorial review authority with the approval of Resolution 2024-43 on November 20, 2024  Based on the information 
received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets appropriate criteria for approval.  On 
November 25, 2024, the Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend to the Board of Supervisors the acceptance and approval of the JW Collins 
Homestead subdivision plat. 

 

AERIAL MAP PLAT EXCEPRT 

 
 

 



2 

 

 

ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
On November 25, 2024, the Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend to the Board of Supervisors the acceptance and approval of the JW Collins 
Homestead subdivision plat. 

 



3 

 

 



4 

 



5 

 



6 

 



7 

 

 
 



8 

 

APPLICATION 

 



9 

 



10 

 



11 

 



12 

 



13 

 



14 

 



15 

 



16 

 



17 

 



18 

 



19 

 

 
 



20 

 

FINAL PLAT 

 
 
ANY ATTACHMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS FINAL PLAT WILL ALSO BE RECORDED IN THE 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER’S OFFICE SEPARATELY IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE RECORDING 

OF THE FINAL PLAT. 

- DEDICATION 

- RESOLUTION FROM THE CITY OF MOVILLE 

- MORTGAGE RESOLUTION, IF APPLICABLE 

- ETC. 

 

 

 

 



21 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING STAFF – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, Planning and Zoning staff: 

 shall review a subdivision application for completeness and for approval of a final plat by ensuring it is submitted in 
accordance with the standards for a subdivision plat per Iowa Code. 

 Staff reviewed the subdivision application, deemed it complete, and verified the final plat’s conformance to the County’s Zoning 
Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and the Code of Iowa, all as required by law. 

 shall accept payment of applicable fees, and distribute copies of the final plat to the Planning & Zoning Commission, the 
appropriate county departments and public utilities; and 

 Staff received the application fee and the account is paid-in-full.  Staff also distributed copies of the application, final plat, and other 
materials to all relevant stakeholders as required. 

 shall coordinate with the County Engineer who shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the engineering design 
standards of these regulations and to verify accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data; and 

 Staff have received written confirmation that the County Engineer has reviewed and determined that the final plat conforms to the 
engineering and design standards of these regulations, and he has verified the accuracy of the legal descriptions and survey data. 

 shall review the final plat to determine conformance with the design standards of these regulations and with the required form 
of the plat and related documents; and 

 Staff verified that the final plat conforms to the design standards of these regulations, as well as the required form of the final plat. 

 

 shall assure conformance with the goals and objectives of the County’s General Plan, the CED staff may make 
recommendations for conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties. 

 Staff attest to the final plat conforming to the goals and objectives of the county plan.  Staff recommends approval of the final plat. 

 

                 

 
ZONING COMMISSION – REVIEW CRITERIA (SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE) 

The County’s Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances require certain actions from County staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
Per these requirements, the Planning and Zoning Commission: 

 shall conduct a public hearing on a final plat for a minor subdivision. Notice of the date, time and location of the hearing will be 
mailed to the owners of all property within 1,000 feet for the subject property not less than four nor more than twenty days prior 
to the date of the hearing; and 

 Staff have ensured that the legal requirements have been met for publicly noticing this public hearing, all as required by law. Staff have 
also ensured the notice requirement for adjacent landowners within 1000 FT have also been met.  

 shall review the final plat and the staff reports and other information presented to determine whether the plat conforms to the 
ordinances, general plan and other policies of the county; and 

 Staff have compiled, reviewed, and analyzed all relevant materials to determine whether the plat conforms to the ordinances, general 
plan, and other policies of the County, or not. Staff provided this information in a “Staff Report” format and made them available to the 
Commission well in advance of the required public hearing. The Commission also held a public hearing to review, analyze, and discuss 
the final plat and other relevant information. 

 may recommend specific conditions for approval including use restrictions required to preserve and improve the peace, safety, 
health, welfare, comfort, and convenience of the future residents of the subdivision and neighboring properties; and 

 Staff does not recommend any specific conditions for this final plat. However, specific conditions (if any) may be recommended by the 
Commission. 

 shall forward a report of its finding and a recommendation to the Board of Supervisors. The recommendation shall be in the 
form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat materials. A copy of the report and the resolution shall also be 
forwarded to the property owner, the subdivider and the land surveyor for the subdivision. 

 During its required public hearing on the final plat, the Board of Supervisors will receive the final staff report and the Commission's 
recommendation on said plat and shall approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the plat. The Supervisors may table the matter 
with the consent of the subdivider. Approval shall be in the form of a resolution to be certified as part of the final plat. Staff will coordinate 
with the subdivider and land surveyor to ensure all copies and recordings are submitted and received, all as required by law.  

 



22 

 

EXTRATERRITORAL REVIEW – CITY OF MOVILLE 
The City of Moville waived their extraterritorial review authority with the approval of Resolution 2024-43 on November 20, 2024.   

 



23 

 

 
 



24 

 

DEDICATION TO BE RECORDED SEPARATELY AS AN ATTACHMENT ASSOCIATED WITH THE FINAL PLAT 

 



25 

 

 
 



26 

 

LEGAL NOTIFICATION – ZONING COMMISSION MEETING PUBLISHED IN THE SIOUX CITY JOURNAL – November 14, 2024 

 



27 

 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION 

Total Property Owners within 1000 FT via Certified Abstractor’s 
Listing: 

3 

Notification Letter Date: November 8, 2024 

Public Hearing Board: Zoning Commission 

Public Hearing Date: November 25, 2024 

Phone Inquiries: 0 

Written Inquiries: 0 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.  
 

 
 

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS 
The Harlan and Frances Steffe Trust 4155 E. Blue Spruce Lane Gilbert AZ 85298 No comments. 

Jadin JP Collins and Taylor Collins 2840 140th Street Moville IA 51039 No comments. 

David Howe 30778 K 49 Hinton IA 51024 No comments. 
 

 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS 
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments. 

CITY OF ANTHON: No comments. 

CONCORD TOWNSHIP: No comments. 

FIBERCOMM: No comments. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments. 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments. 

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments. 

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments. 

LONGLINES: No comments. 

LUMEN: No comments. 

MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I have reviewed the following proposed minor subdivision proposal for MEC electric and we 
have, no conflicts. – Casey Meinen, 11/5/24. 

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No comments. 

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments. 

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments. 

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request., Jeff Zettel, 
11/12/24. 

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments. 

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments. 

WIATEL: No comments. 

WINNEBAGO TRIBE: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: SEE MEMO BELOW 

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: Anyway he can move the recording certificate to the left?  I’m not sure I can get my entire 
name and Deputy on that line.  If he can’t, I’ll make it work.  Thank you – Diane Swoboda 
Peterson, 11/5/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
(REC): 

No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SHERIFF: No comments. 

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
DISTRICT: 

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this subdivision. – Neil Stockfleth, 11/5/24. 

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: The 2nd half of property taxes are outstanding in the amount of $1,084 – Tina Bertrand, 
11/5/24. 

 

 

 

 



28 

 

COUNTY ENGINEER’S REVIEW MEMO 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



29 

 

PICTOMETRY 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



30 

 

PLAT MAP EXCERPT 

 



31 

 

TITLE OPINION 

 
 

 

 

 



32 

 

PARCEL REPORT(S) 

 



33 

 

 
 



34 

 

ZONING MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



35 

 

SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP 

 



36 

 

ELEVATION MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



37 

 

SOIL MAP(S) 

 



38 

 

SOIL REPORT(S) 

 



39 

 

 
 



40 

 



41 

 

 
 


	Insert from: "2024-12-10  Liability Insurance Agenda Item.pdf"
	Insert from: "Liability Insurance Back Up.pdf"
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17


	Insert from: "Salix DD Creation Report amended 2024 12 10.pdf"
	EASEMENTS 1 OF 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 OF 2


	EASEMENTS 2 OF 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	2 OF 2


	0 AMENDED REPORT COMBINED Plans.pdf
	D.01 OVERALL PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	D.01 OVERALL PLAN


	W1 EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W1 EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W2 EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W2 EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W3 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W3 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W4 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W4 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W5 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W5 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W6 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W6 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W7 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W7 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W8 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W8 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS




	Insert from: "Agenda Request Salix DD.pdf"
	Insert from: "Salix DD Creation Report amended 2024 12 10.pdf"
	EASEMENTS 1 OF 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	1 OF 2


	EASEMENTS 2 OF 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	2 OF 2


	0 AMENDED REPORT COMBINED Plans.pdf
	D.01 OVERALL PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	D.01 OVERALL PLAN


	W1 EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W1 EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W2 EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W2 EAST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W3 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W3 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W4 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W4 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W5 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W5 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W6 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W6 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W7 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W7 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS


	W8 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS
	Sheets and Views
	W8 SOUTH AND WEST LEG CROSS SECTIONS





	Insert from: "12-10-24_Oakridge_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion.pdf"
	Barker_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report.pdf
	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03



	Bookmarks from final plat-yockey 4-4-24.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	FINAL PLAT-SHT 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model




	Insert from: "12-10-24_JW_Collins_Homestead_Minor_Subdivsion.pdf"
	Barker_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report.pdf
	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03



	Bookmarks from final plat-yockey 4-4-24.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	FINAL PLAT-SHT 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model





